

# APPENDIX A: REFERENCES

- 2018 Report on the Health of Colorado's Forests. Colorado State Forest Service. 2019. Accessed September 2019 from [https://csfs.colostate.edu/media/sites/22/2019/03/FINAL-307714\\_ForestRpt-2018-www.pdf](https://csfs.colostate.edu/media/sites/22/2019/03/FINAL-307714_ForestRpt-2018-www.pdf).
- Advisory Council on Historic Preservation Staff. A Citizen's Guide to Section 106 Review. ACHP. 2016. Accessed December 2019 from <https://www.achp.gov/digital-library-section-106-landing/citizens-guide-section-106-review>.
- Ahrens, Marty. Lighting Fires and Lighting Strikes. 2013. National Fire Prevention Association Fire Analysis and Research Division.
- American Community Survey Statistics for Summit County. 2013-2017. U.S. Census Bureau. 2019. Accessed September 2019 from <https://factfinder.census.gov/>.
- Amman, Gene D., Mark D. McGregor, and Robert E. Dolph, Jr. Mountain Pine Beetle. U.S. Forest Service. Forest Insect & Disease Leaflet 2. 2002.
- Atkins, Dale. A History of Colorado Avalanche Accidents, 1859–2006. International Snow Science Workshop 2006 Proceedings. 2006.
- Berwyn, Bob. Remembering 'The Big One.' Summit Daily News February 15, 2007. [www.summitdaily.com/](http://www.summitdaily.com/).
- Berwyn, Bob. 'The Big One' - Rescue, Recovery.' Summit Daily News. February 16, 2007. [www.summitdaily.com/](http://www.summitdaily.com/).
- Borowsky, Larry. "Braking I-70's Slow Slide." Colorado School of Mines, Mines Magazine. Spring 2013.
- Breckenridge Historic District. Town of Breckenridge. 2019. Accessed November 2019 from <https://www.townofbreckenridge.com/work/community-development/historic-district>
- Breckenridge Town Code. Town of Breckenridge. 2019. Accessed September 2019 from [https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book\\_id=878](https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/index.php?book_id=878)
- CBS Denver. Montezuma Still Cut Off After Flooding Destroys Only Road to Town. 2014. Accessed September 2019 from <https://denver.cbslocal.com/2014/06/04/montezuma-still-cut-off-after-flooding-destroys-only-road-to-town/>
- Colorado Department of Transportation. Annual Roadkill Reports. <https://www.codot.gov/programs/environmental/wildlife/data/annual-roadkill-reports>
- Colorado Dust-On-Snow Program. Center for Snow and Avalanche Studies (CSAS). 2019.
- Colorado Avalanche Information Center (CAIC). 2019.
- Census QuickFacts for Summit County, Colorado. U.S. Census Bureau. [www.census.gov/](http://www.census.gov/).

Colorado's Common Forest Insects and Diseases. Colorado State Forest Service. 2018. Accessed November 2019 from <https://csfs.colostate.edu/forest-management/common-forest-insects-diseases/>

Colorado State Demography Office. Department of Local Affairs. <https://demography.dola.colorado.gov/>

Colorado Department of Labor and Employment. <https://www.colorado.gov/cdle>

Colorado Department of Natural Resources, Division of Reclamation, Mining, and Safety, Inactive Mine Reclamation Program. <https://mining.state.co.us/Programs/Abandoned/Pages/impwelcomepage.aspx>

Colorado Division of Homeland Security & Emergency Management. <http://www.coemergency.com/>.

Colorado Earthquake Information. Colorado Geological Survey. 2019. <http://coloradogeologicalsurvey.org/geologic-hazards/earthquakes/>

Colorado Geological Survey. <http://coloradogeologicalsurvey.org/>

Colorado Mountain Pine Beetle Epidemic 1996-2017. Colorado State Forest Service. 2018. <https://csfs.colostate.edu/forest-management/common-forest-insects-diseases/mountain-pine-beetle/>

Colorado Parks and Wildlife. The Colorado Highway 9 Wildlife Crossing Project. <https://cpw.state.co.us/hwy9>

Colorado Parks and Wildlife. State Aquatic Nuisance Species (ANS) Program, Summary for Colorado Legislators per SB 08-226. January 2014. <https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/default/files/Aquatic%20Nuisance%20Species%20Program%20LegislativeReport-January2014-FINAL.pdf>

Colorado Scenic Byways. <https://www.codot.gov/travel/scenic-byways>

Colorado State Hazard Mitigation Plan. 2018. Accessed September 2019.

Colorado Wildfire Risk Assessment Portal (CO-WRAP). Colorado State Forest Service. 2019. <https://csfs.colostate.edu/wildfire-mitigation/cowrap/>

Community Rating System (CRS). Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). <https://www.fema.gov/national-flood-insurance-program-community-rating-system>

Developing the Mitigation Plan: Identifying Mitigation Actions and Implementation Strategies. Federal Emergency Management Agency. FEMA 386-3. 2003. <https://www.fema.gov/media-library/assets/documents/4267>

Dillon Municipal Code. Town of Dillon. 2019. <https://www.townofdillon.com/town-government/municipal-code>

Directory of Colorado State Register Listed Properties. Colorado Historical Society Office of Archeology and Historical Preservation. <https://www.historycolorado.org/national-state-register-listed-properties>

Drought Impact Reporter. National Drought Mitigation Center. <http://droughtreporter.unl.edu/>

Dutta, Deepan. Mussel Infestations threaten Summit, Colorado reservoirs. July 19, 2019. Summit Daily. <https://www.summitdaily.com/news/mussel-infestations-threaten-summit-colorado-reservoirs/>

Ellison, Greg. Week in Summit: Brush Creek Fire Cause Determined. Summit Daily. 2015. Accessed October 2019 from <https://www.summitdaily.com/news/local/week-in-summit-brush-creek-fire-cause-determined/>

Encyclopedia Staff. Summit County. Colorado Encyclopedia. 2019. Accessed November 2019 from <https://coloradoencyclopedia.org/article/summit-county>

Threatened and Endangered List. Colorado Parks and Wildlife. 2019. <https://www.fws.gov/endangered/>.

Farm Service Agency. U.S. Department of Agriculture. 2019.

Federal Disaster Declarations. FEMA. 2019. <https://www.fema.gov/disasters>

Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, National Hazardous Materials Route Registry. <https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/regulations/hazardous-materials/national-hazardous-materials-route-registry-state>

FEMA Community Lifelines Information Sheet – National Response Framework (Fourth Edition). U.S. Department of Homeland Security. 2019. Accessed September 2019 from [https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1544469177002-251a503b3717f0d6d483bae6169f4106/Revised\\_Community\\_Lifelines\\_Information\\_Sheet.pdf](https://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/1544469177002-251a503b3717f0d6d483bae6169f4106/Revised_Community_Lifelines_Information_Sheet.pdf)

Flood Insurance Study: Summit County, Colorado and Incorporated Areas. Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). November 16, 2018.

Formosa, Nicole. Ophir Mountain Fire Area Dubbed “High Priority” by Officials. Summit Daily News. September 23, 2005.

Formosa, Nicole. Sheriff’s deputy awarded for rescuing boaters. Summit Daily News. August 15, 2007.

Formosa, Nicole. Study Shows Dillon’s Water Supply Is Adequate. March 16, 2006.

Frisco Community Plan. Town of Frisco. August 2019. [https://www.frisco.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/CommunityPlan\\_AdoptionDraft\\_072419\\_WebReduced.pdf](https://www.frisco.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/08/CommunityPlan_AdoptionDraft_072419_WebReduced.pdf)

Gabbert, Bill. Peak 2 Fire Causes Evacuations North of Breckenridge, Colorado. Wildfire Today. 2017. Accessed October 2019 from <https://wildfiretoday.com/2017/07/05/peak-2-fire-causes-evacuations-north-of-breckenridge-colorado/>

Garner, J. Storm Sinks 6 Boats at Dillon. Rocky Mountain News. September 26, 1986.

GeoMAC Wildland Fire Support – Geospatial Multi-Agency Coordination Database. U.S. Geological Survey. 2019. <https://www.geomac.gov/>

- Getting Started: Building Support for Mitigation Planning. Federal Emergency Management Agency. FEMA 386-1. 2002.
- Grand County Hazard Mitigation Plan. Grand County. 2013. <https://www.co.grand.co.us/156/5152/Office-of-Emergency-Management>
- Hamilton, Harriet. Storm Refugees Tell Stories of Being Trapped in Summit. Summit Daily News. December 31, 2007.
- Hazard Mitigation Planning and Hazard Mitigation Grant Program. Federal Register. Interim Final Rule. February 26, 2002.
- Hazard Mitigation Grant Program. 2019. FEMA. December 17, 2019. <https://www.fema.gov/hazard-mitigation-grant-program>
- Hazus 4.2. Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). <https://www.fema.gov/hazus>
- Heeney/Green Mountain Reservoir Subbasin Plan. Summit County. 2010. <https://www.summitcountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/121/HeeneyPlan3-4-10?bidId=>
- High Country Conservation Center. Blue River Watershed Regional Water Efficiency Plan. 2018. <https://www.friscogov.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/Blue-River-Watershed-Water-Efficiency-Plan.pdf>
- High Country Conservation Center (b). Copper Mountain Consolidated Metropolitan District Water Efficiency Plan. 2018. [http://www.coppermtmetro.org/images/CMCMD\\_WEP\\_-\\_Final.pdf](http://www.coppermtmetro.org/images/CMCMD_WEP_-_Final.pdf)
- Historic American Buildings Survey. National Park Service. [www.nps.gov/history/hdp/habs/](http://www.nps.gov/history/hdp/habs/).
- Historic American Engineering Record. National Park Service. [www.nps.gov/history/hdp/haer/](http://www.nps.gov/history/hdp/haer/).
- Kellogg, Karl S. Geologic Map of the Dillon Quadrangle, Summit and Grand Counties, Colorado. U.S. Geological Survey. 2018. <https://www.friscogov.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/Blue-River-Watershed-Water-Efficiency-Plan.pdf>
- Kellogg, Karl S., Paul J. Bartos, and Cindy L. Williams. Geologic Map of the Frisco Quadrangle, Summit County, Colorado.
- Kepler, William F. Nondestructive Testing of Reclamation Structures. Water Operation and Maintenance Bulletin. Bureau of Reclamation. March 2001.
- Kintsch, Ruediger, Singer, Nettles. Summit County Safe Passages: A County-wide Connectivity Plan for Wildlife. October 2017.
- Krusen, Lindsey. Frozen Culvert Causes Flooding in Summit Cove. Summit Daily News. February 17, 2007.
- Langley, Allie. Summit County dust storm could impact skiing and accelerate snow melt. Summit Daily New. April 4, 2014.

Leatherman D.A., I. Aguayo, and T.M. Mehall. Mountain Pine Beetle. Colorado State University Extension.

Lister, Brocki, Ament. Integrated Adaptive Design for Wildlife Movement Under Climate Change. 2015. The Ecological Society of America. doi: 10.1890/150080

Mesa Cortina/Summit County Open Space Wildfire Mitigation Plan. Summit County Open Space. Prepared by Colorado State Forest Service. December 2018.

[http://www.summitcountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/25422/MesaCortinaMitigationPlan\\_2018](http://www.summitcountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/25422/MesaCortinaMitigationPlan_2018)

Multi-Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment. Federal Emergency Management Agency. 1997.

Multi-Hazard Mitigation Planning Guidance under the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000. Federal Emergency Management Agency.

National Interagency Fire Center. Lighting Fires. 2018. [https://www.nifc.gov/fireInfo/fireInfo\\_stats\\_lightng-human.html](https://www.nifc.gov/fireInfo/fireInfo_stats_lightng-human.html)

Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation Planning. Federal Emergency Management Agency. FEMA 386-8. 2006.

National Environmental Policy Act and/or the National Historic Preservation Act Review – Grants. National Endowment for the Arts. 2018. Accessed December 2019 from [view-source:https://www.arts.gov/grants-organizations/nepa-nhpa-review](https://www.arts.gov/grants-organizations/nepa-nhpa-review)

National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

<http://www.fema.gov/national-flood-insurance-program>.

National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) Floodplain Management Requirements: A Study Guide and Desk Reference for Local Officials. Federal Emergency Management Agency. FEMA 480.

<http://www.fema.gov/floodplain-management/floodplain-management-requirements>.

National Pipeline Mapping System. <https://www.npms.phmsa.dot.gov/>

National Register of Historic Places. National Park Service.

<https://www.nps.gov/subjects/nationalregister/index.htm>.

National Response Center. <http://nrc.uscg.mil/>.

National Weather Service Lightning Safety. <https://www.weather.gov/safety/lightning>.

National Weather Service. Beaufort Wind Scale. <https://www.spc.noaa.gov/faq/tornado/beaufort.html>

Natural Hazard Mitigation Saves: An Independent Study to Assess the Future Savings from Mitigation Activities. National Institute of Building Science Multi-Hazard Mitigation Council. 2005.

[www.nibs.org/MMC/mmactiv5.html](http://www.nibs.org/MMC/mmactiv5.html).

- Paul, Jesse. Breckenridge-Area Peak 2 Fire Evacuees Won't Be Able To Go Home Until At Least Friday. The Denver Post. 2017. Accessed October 2019 from <https://www.denverpost.com/2017/07/06/breckenridge-fire-evacuations/>
- Paul, Jesse. Firefighters Say "Things Are Looking Really Good" as They Battle Wildfire Near Silverthorne; Roughly 1,400 Homes Evacuated. The Denver Post. 2018. Accessed October 2019 from <https://www.denverpost.com/2018/06/12/buffalo-mounain-wildfire-summit-county/>
- Paul, Jesse. The Buffalo Fire, Near Silverthorne, Was One of the First Big Tests for Fire Breaks in Colorado - Now, Communities are Changing Their Tune Toward Them. The Colorado Sun. 2018. Accessed October 2019 from <https://coloradosun.com/2018/09/26/buffalo-wildfire-clear-cut-colorado/>
- Queen, Jack. Tenderfoot 2 Fire Now 50 Percent Contained, Officials "Cautiously Optimistic." Summit Daily. 2017. Accessed October 2019 from <https://www.summitdaily.com/news/local/tenderfoot-2-fire-stays-put-despite-high-winds-officials-cautiously-optimistic-the-worst-is-over/>
- Red, White & Blue Fire Protection District Community Risk Assessment: Standards of Cover. 2020. <https://www.rwbfire.org/Archive.aspx?AMID=47>
- Risk Analysis Study of Hazardous Materials Trucks through Eisenhower/Johnson Memorial Tunnels. Colorado Department of Transportation. 2006.
- Rogers, William P. Critical Landslides in Colorado a Year 2002 Review and Priority List. Colorado Geological Survey. 2004.
- Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Act. Public Law 93-288, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 5121-5207. June 2007.
- Silverthorne Comprehensive Plan Update. 2014. Town of Silverthorne. <https://www.silverthorne.org/town-services/community-development/blue-print-silverthorne-comprehensive-plan>
- Silverthorne Town Code. Town of Silverthorne. <https://www.silverthorne.org/government/town-code-and-charter>
- State of Colorado Drought Mitigation and Response Plan. 2018.
- State of Colorado Natural Hazards Mitigation Plan. Colorado Division of Emergency Management. 2011.
- Storm Events Database. National Centers for Environmental Information (NCEI). National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA). 2019. <https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/stormevents/>
- Summit County Climate Action Plan: Strategies for A Sustainable Future. High Country Conservation Center. April 2018. <https://highcountryconservation.org/climate-action-plan/>
- Summit County Community Wildfire Protection Plan. Summit County Wildfire Council. 2018.

Summit Countywide Comprehensive Plan. 2009. <http://www.co.summit.co.us/495/Countywide-Comprehensive-Plan>

Summit County Land Use and Development Code. 2019. <http://www.co.summit.co.us/255/Land-Use-Development-Code>

Summit County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan. 2013. <https://www.summitcountyco.gov/194/Natural-Hazard-Plans>

Summit County Population Projections. 2019. Summit County. Accessed October 2019 from <https://www.summitcountyco.gov/519/Population-Projections>

Summit County Planning Department. Summary of Residential Build-out Analysis of Properties in Summit County by Basin. December 31, 2018. <http://www.co.summit.co.us/DocumentCenter/View/179>

Swift-Water Safety and Flood Preparedness Guide. A Citizen's Handbook for the Annual Snowmelt and Runoff Season. Summit County. July 2019. <http://www.summitcountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/9596/Flood-Preparedness-Guide?bidId=>

Thompson, Andrea. Lightning May Increase with Global Warming. November 13, 2014. Scientific American. <https://www.scientificamerican.com/article/lightning-may-increase-with-global-warming/>

Thompson, Travis. Saving our reservoirs from invading 'cling-ons'. Denver Water. March 23, 2017. <https://denverwatertap.org/2017/03/23/saving-reservoirs-invading-cling-ons/>

Town of Blue River Comprehensive Plan. <https://www.colorado.gov/pacific/sites/default/files/BlueRiverComprehensivePlanAug29%20%281%29.pdf>

Town of Breckenridge. [www.townofbreckenridge.com/](http://www.townofbreckenridge.com/).

Town of Breckenridge Emergency Operations Annex. Town of Breckenridge. Revised in 2012. <https://www.townofbreckenridge.com/home/showdocument?id=5295>.

Town of Breckenridge Comprehensive Plan. Town of Breckenridge. March 25, 2008. <https://www.townofbreckenridge.com/home/showdocument?id=34>

Town of Dillon. [www.townofdillon.com/](http://www.townofdillon.com/).

Town of Silverthorne. [www.silverthorne.org/](http://www.silverthorne.org/).

Understanding Your Risks: Identifying Hazards and Estimating Losses. Federal Emergency Management Agency. FEMA 386-2. 2001.

USACE National Inventory of Dams. 2018. Accessed September 2019.

U.S. Drought Monitor Archives. University of Nebraska-Lincoln.

U.S. Geological Survey. <http://www.usgs.gov/>.

U.S. Seasonal Drought Outlook. National Weather Service Climate Prediction Service.

West Dan. Forest Disturbance in Summit County? 2018 Forest Health Highlights. March 21, 2019. Colorado State Forest Service. <https://www.summitcountyco.gov/DocumentCenter/View/24687/32119-Insect-Disease--Presentation-Dan-West?bidId=>

Western Regional Climate Center. [www.wrcc.dri.edu/](http://www.wrcc.dri.edu/).

Wildfire Forces Evacuations in Summit County. TheDenverChannel.com. September 19, 2005.

Wildfires Contained Along Front Range, Western Slope. TheDenverChannel.com. September 21, 2005.

Yuhas, Roberta. Loss of Wetlands in the Southwestern United States. U.S. Geological Survey. 1996. Accessed 2013 from <https://geochange.er.usgs.gov/sw/impacts/hydrology/wetlands/>